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Construction Services Questions and Answers.

1. In the Past Performance Survey statement, you request an evaluation of projects performed that are similar in scope to the sample task. Please clarify.

Answer:  The Past Performance surveys should be requested from projects that were similar in scope to those disciplines listed in the Statement of Work and performed on either Commercial or Industrial projects.

2. Is a bid guaranty required?

Answer: Yes. A 3 million dollar bid guaranty is required with the RFP.

3. Will security clearances be required?

Answer: Yes

4. If our employees have security clearances under DOD will an additional clearance be required?

Answer: Yes. A separate NASA security clearance is required.

5. Can a task be proposed on as time and material?

Answer: No. All task orders are fixed price.

6. Is a pay structure required for design build?

Answer: No. The design build is a limited activity. The design rates would be negotiated at the time of the contract.

7. Does the 25% self perform clause include Safety and Supervision?

Answer: Yes

8. Can a small tool allowance be included in the rate structure?

Answer:  That depends on your accounting system
9. How much of the proposed work is environmental?

Answer:  Most tasks involve some type of abatement or have an environmental aspect. 
10. Will key personnel interviews be part of the evaluation?

Answer:  The following is from page 73 of the RFP. Please consult the RFP for the complete clause statement. The Government intends to evaluate proposals and award a contract without discussions with offerors (except clarifications as described in FAR 15.306(a)). Therefore, the offeror's initial proposal should contain the offeror's best terms from a cost or price and technical standpoint. The Government reserves the right to conduct discussions if the Contracting Officer later determines them to be necessary.

  11. What are the distance and the depth of the primary duct bank?

Answer: 10’deep by 100’ length 

  12.  What are the requirements for the core drilling of the existing power 
       manhole?


A. Will the existing cables in the manhole need to be de-energized for the new installation?

Answer: YES


B. Will a High Voltage Safetyman need to be provided by the Government?

Answer: YES

    13. What are the accessibility requirements for the work that needs to be   performed in Sub B?


Answer:   High Voltage Safety person will need to be supplied by the prime in addition to a High Voltage Safety Man supplied by the government.  Please refer to the Glenn Safety Manual for further information.

  14.  What is the length of the conduit in the crawl space of the test chamber?


Answer:  50 feet

  15. What is the location of Panel F-1000 in relation to the new Panel F01?

Answer:  The panels are located in the same room about 25 foot apart.

16.Is there a requirement for a single bare ground wire and marking tape to be installed above the new duct banks?

Answer:  YES
  17.      What is the lead time for notification for the de-energization of panel F-1000 for the installation of the new 400 amp tie breaker?


Answer:  Two weeks.

  18.      What is the procedure for the disposal of core drilling slurry, and other construction debris?


Answer:  Please reference the Environmental Safety Manual. The link is located in Section C of the RFP.
  19.      What is the procedure we need to follow as far as the witnessing of the acceptance tests that are required for the new transformer, primary cable, and secondary cable?


Answer: The witnessing of the acceptance testing shall be by a government inspector, the prime contractor representative and the manufacturers representative.

  20.      Will the Government furnished equipment be delivered to the site and set in     position, or will the contractor be responsible for loading, moving, setting, and securing the equipment?

Answer:  The Prime contractor will be responsible for coordinating the delivery of the government furnished equipment from the manufacturer, the unloading, moving, setting and securing of the equipment. 

21. Is a full time, on-site representative from each of the successful 8(a) firms    
                 required for the duration of the contract period irrespective of whether or 
not our firm may not have an active Task Order(s) is in place?

Answer:  A full time representative is only required to be onsite when there is active task work being performed.

22. For the sample task included in Attachment B please provide clarification on the cable tunnel.  Is this something personnel can walk upright in?  Size, length, access, additional entrance points, depth below grade, existing lighting or power?  What is the distance from Substation B to the Power Manhole?
Answer:   The existing cable tunnel is 6’h X 8’ w. It is located 10 foot below grade, has two external entry points, with lights and no existing usable power. The distance from the substation to the PMH is 182 feet.
23. What is the distance from the PMH to the transformer?  What are the duct bank depth requirements on the primary side? 

Answer:  The distance from the PMH to the transformer is 75’. The duct bank will be 
  
  placed at a depth of 10’ 

24. The secondary duct bank states 100’ in length and 10’ in depth. There is also a statement that hand excavation will have to be performed from the transformer to the test chamber area.  Please clarify “hand excavation” and that this is the 100’long, 10’ deep excavation.

Answer:  Hand excavation is only required within 10 foot of the bldg. wall.

25. Where the secondary duct bank ties into the crawl space, is this the outside wall of a building? Are there existing openings that the conduit will pass thru?  What is access to the crawl space? Size of the crawl space?

Answer:  Yes it is the outside wall of the bldg.  There are no existing openings in the crawl space.  The crawl space can be accessed through a manhole cover inside the 
    bldg. The crawl space is 6’wX4’h.

26. Are there any concerns with LBP?  On any of the surfaces that are being penetrated, i.e. floor of the test chamber?

Answer:  The floor of the test chamber has tested positive for lead based paint (LBP) at a level of 20%
27. It is stated in Attachment B, A sketch of the proposed installation shall be included in the implementation plan.  A sketch of the entire project or a specific portion of it?

Answer:  A sketch of the entire project. 

28. The GFE will this be on site or will the contractor be required to rig and transport it from another location?
Answer:  See questions #20.

29. Ref: Section L. instruction L.19, page 78) –Please clarify what is meant by “Plastic Bindings” Are you seeking proposals secured by three(3) ring binders or proposals bound with plastic binding combs/spines?

Answer:  Plastic binding combs/spines are the only acceptable bindings.  NO THREE (03) RING BINDERS.

30. On page 82,(item 2.Price) ,the contractor is asked to provide a completed Form Attachment D for all full time employees that will be dedicated to the contract. How is the amount of their times that is reimbursable to be determined or are all fulltime, on site personnel to be considered fully reimbursable? This is particularly relevant for the Project Manager’s time, whom the government does not specifically mandate MUST be onsite, full time.

Answer:  All tasks orders are competitive fixed-price.  This is not a cost reimbursable contract.  Attachment D documents the rate of the offerors personnel that may be charged to the task order.  No employee is considered “fully reimbursable”.  It depends on the offerors accounting system.
31. Item 6.0 on page 90 of the RFP states that the Contractor shall have a full time on site Superintendent and Safety Officer during the performance of the contract. Does this staff cover both installations or is it expected that each separate site will have its own full time Superintendent and Safety Officer?
Answer:  For Glenn Research Center at Lewis Field both the Site Superintendent and Safety Officer will be onsite when there is active work being performed on a task. At Plum Brook Station only the on site Superintendent is required for when active work is being performed on a task.

32. For meeting s scheduled with NASA, who is tasked to manage the meeting? 

Answer:  The prime contractor will manage all scheduled meetings.

33. Should volume 1 and 2 be separately bound?
Answer: YES

34.     Is there a minimum font size for the two volumes?

Answer:  YES. Font size shall be #12.

35. 
  Is there a specific type of software such as Sure Track that we will be required to 
  use?

Answer:   NO.  

36. What specific information is required for each resume? Will the resume format 
   be similar to a SF330 resume?
Answer:  The resumes should include enough information to evaluate the individual. No specific resume format has been identified.
37. What kind of documentation is necessary to show level of commitment to the potential contract? A written statement and signature or a percentage of the work completed?
Answer:  The commitment shall indicate whether the key personnel will be solely 
          dedicated to the contract. 

38. We intend on providing certain information which would require the use of an 
     11 x 17 folded sheet. Is this acceptable? If so, how would this affect page  
     number limitations?

Answer:  11 x17 folded sheets may be used ONLY for the Sample task schedule. It will count as one page.

39.   Do we include the first aid procedures, accident response procedures, fire safety 
   and response procedures in the HASP (Health and Safety Plan) or can we    

         simply  have those procedures in our corporate safety manual?
Answer:  Those items shall be in the HASP.

40.  Do we need a pressurized systems control plan in our corporate safety manual or 

       can we institute a control plan in the HASP?
Answer:  If a pressurized systems control plan is required for a specific task, then it 
    should be submitted with the HASP.

41.  Do we need a comprehensive hearing conservation plan w/audiometric testing 
        
       in the corporate program or can we address hearing protection in the HASP?
Answer:  The corporate safety plan is unique to each company.  Hearing protection needs to be addressed in the HASP if that hazard exists.

42.  Are we to address each task activity in descriptive format with controls or 
    
       simply respond to each potential hazard with controls?
Answer:  Please see Appendix B and C of Chapter 17 of the Glenn Safety Manual.

Construction Services Clarifications
43.  Page 80, Paragraph L.19 1. A. Task Specific Health And Safety Plan (HASP) 

The last paragraph has been rewritten in its entirety:

“The plan shall similarly address subcontractor employee safety and occupational health for all proposed subcontractors.”

44.  Page 82, Paragraph L.19 1. Past Performance 

The first paragraph has been partially rewritten to remove the reference to the “Sample Task” and refer to the “Statement Of Work” instead:

“The prime contractor, teaming partners and major subcontractors, including but not limited to mechanical, electrical and instrumentation subcontractors shall submit:

-A list of projects, similar in nature and magnitude to those referenced in the Statement Of Work that were completed in the last 3 years.” 

45.  Page 82, Paragraph L.19 1. Past Performance 

The second paragraph has been partially rewritten to remove the reference to the “Sample Task” and refer instead to the “Statement Of Work”:

“Submit the form to those customers where you performed work similar to that described in the Statement Of Work as a prime contractor.”

46.  Page 85, Paragraph M.1.B.1 Mission Suitability  

The last sentence has been partially rewritten to insert the word “numerical”: 

“The subfactors will then be consolidated into a single numerical Mission Suitability rating.”

47.  Page 87, Paragraph M.1.B.3 Price  

The paragraph has been rewritten in its entirety: 

“No adjective rating will be assigned to Price, but it will be evaluated to determine its reasonableness and acceptability. In performing this evaluation the Government will consider the Current Rate Structure – Attachment D, along with the mark-ups (labor, overhead, material handling (if any), G&A, profit, and any other mark-ups) and will compare these mark-ups with historical data for reasonableness. The Government will also evaluate the offeror’s construction bonding level to determine its acceptability.”
48.  Page 100, Paragraph 3Additional Environmental Guidelines  

The last sentence has been partially rewritten to remove the words “and hazardous”: 

“Personnel performing solid waste activities shall be trained …..” 

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE LIST

The Coniglio Company

4400 Commerce Ave.

Cleveland, Ohio  44103

Diaz Enterprise Inc.

361 Blue Run Road

Minford, Ohio  45653

IAP Leopardo

8760 Orion Place

Columbus, Ohio  43240

VIP Electric

8358 Mentor Ave

Mentor, Ohio  44060

KBJ Inc.

1896 First Place

Oakwood Village, Ohio  44839

McDanizls construction

1069 Woodland Ave.

Columbus, Ohio  43219

McTech

8100 Grand

Cleveland, Ohio  44410

Solar Testing Labs.

1125 Valley Bell Road

Cleveland, Ohio  44131

EdArch Associates, Inc.

2919 Warrington Road

Shaker Heights, Ohio  44120

Williams Construction & Project Management, Inc.

1700 E 13th Street / Suite 3FE

Cleveland, Ohio  44114

R.J. Runge Company, Inc.

1546 NW Catawba Road / Unit A

Port Clinton, Ohio  43452

Logik Construction Services

36445 Biltmore Place / Suite A

Willoughby, Ohio  44094

Pinnacle Construction

38220 Willoughby Parkway

Willoughby, Ohio  44094

WCPM

1700 E. 13th Street Stg 3/E

Cleveland, Ohio  44114

F&G building Company

2401 Superior Ave. Viaduct

Cleveland, Ohio  44113

Shook RJE

10245 Brecksville Road

Brecksville, Ohio  44141

Minimum Information for Site Specific Health and Safety Plan (HASP)

The following are requirements for a safety and health policy and program document.  The following are the minimum requirements for the Site Specific HASP, however each plan shall be job specific and shall also address any unusual or unique aspects of the project or activity for which it is written.   
1. Signature Sheet.  Title, signature and phone number of the following:

a. Plan Preparer

2. Contractor Information

a. Prime Contractor

b. Project Name

c. Accurate project description
3. Statement of Safety and Health Policy.  Provide a copy of the current corporate/company Safety and Health Policy statement.  

4. Responsibilities and lines of Authorities

a. Identification and accountability of personnel responsible for safety, at both corporate and project level.

b. Lines of Authority

5. Subcontractors. Provide the following:

a. Identification of subcontractors

b. Means for coordinating subcontractors

c. Safety responsibilities of subcontractors.

6. Training

a. List mandatory training and certificates that are applicable to this project (ex. Confined space, crane operator, respiratory protection, Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response, etc) and any requirements for periodic retraining/recertification.

b. Identify requirement for supervisory and employee safety meetings ( who attends, when given, who will conduct, etc)
7. Safety and Health Inspections. Provide details on the following:

a. Who will conduct safety inspections (ex. Project Manager, safety professional, supervisors), inspector’s training/qualifications, frequency of inspections, process to record inspections, deficiency tracking system, follow-up procedures, etc.  

b. Any external inspection/certifications that may be required.

8. Safety and Health Expectations, incentive programs and Compliance.

a. A brief description of the company’s safety incentive program.

b. Policies and procedures regarding noncompliance with safety requirements.

9. Accident Reporting.  The contractor shall identify who, how and when the following will be completed:

a. Exposure data

b. Accident investigations, reports and logs

c. Immediate notification of major accidents

10. Plans, Programs and Procedures

a. Emergency Response Plans

i. Procedures and posting of emergency phone numbers

b. Spill plans

c. Hazard Communication Program.  Provide location of MSDS, records of employee training and inventory of hazardous materials (including approximate quantities and a site map) that will be brought onto Government property by Contractor and subcontractors.

11. Hazard Analysis and Controls.  The following information is provided as a guide for conducting a site specific hazard analysis.  The hazard analysis is dependent on the scope of work associated with each project; this list is at a minimum the hazards that need to be considered when writing a Site Specific Health and Safety Plan.  The site specific HASP shall include an analysis of the hazards and controls for all aspects of the project, including any unusual or unique aspects of the project.

1.
Asbestos

· Materials are considered asbestos, or ACM (asbestos containing materials), unless labeled “Does Not Contain Asbestos” or lab data indicates it does not contain asbestos.  Applicable building materials include but are not limited to, thermal system insulation, floor tile, mastic, ceiling tiles, roof flashing, roof felts, joint compound and Transite.

· Do not disturb asbestos containing building material (cutting, grinding, etc)

· Typical locations:  floor tile/mastic, pipe insulation, ceiling tile/mastic, joint compound, roof flashing, roof felts, Transite panels, and insulation on wiring.

· If deteriorated asbestos is found notify NASA’s CM immediately.  

· Asbestos shall be disposed of properly.

· Abatement or disturbance of ACM shall be done by a licensed contractor (Federal, State, and local regulations as applicable)
· Identification of the impacts of ACM on projects is most often determined as part of the project design.
· OSHA 29CFR1926.1101

· See Chapter 2, “Asbestos”, of the Occupational Health Programs Manual 


In the HASP:
· Method of removal

· Engineering controls

· If respiratory protection is required, provide a written Respiratory Protection Program (see “Respiratory Protection”)

· Medical surveillance documentation

· Fit testing documentation

· Training documentation  

· Disposal plan

· Permits

· Exposure monitoring
· Clearance monitoring

· Specific Personal Protective Equipment

2.
Barricading

· Barricading is required during construction to protect NASA contractors and employees from hazard exposure and to provide safe and reasonable pedestrian and vehicular accessibility to the Center’s facilities. 

(
If road or lane closure is required, notify NASA ‘s COTR 30 days prior to beginning road closure activities.


In the HASP: 

· List the types of barricading pertaining to specific areas. Barricading must be in place to block the passage of persons or vehicles through a construction area, warn individuals of possible or existing hazards, or provide guidance in the redirection of traffic.

· Include an approximate duration 

· Include a sketch of proposed barricade layout, if feasible.  Otherwise, include a description of the area.

· If road closure is required, list the specific location(s) of the road to be blocked, the street name, the control devices used to block the road, the duration of the blockage, protection of construction zone hazards during non-working hours, use of flagger(s) trained in accordance with the American Traffic Safety Services Association (ATSSA) flagger training program.

· See Chapter 29, “Safety Barricades”, of the Glenn Safety Manual.

3.
Biological 

(
Biological hazards can exist when tying into an existing sanitation line, removing animal nests and/or excrement, or when working on mold remediation projects.


In the HASP:
· Description of work and hazard
· List training
· List the engineering controls that will be used

· List specific PPE that will be worn.  If respirators are required submit in accordance with the “Respiratory Protection” section.
5.
Chemical/Flammable Hazards

· OSHA regulates specific chemicals.  Commonly encountered issues related to OSHA regulated material in a construction site include (silica (cement work, sandblasting, and tuck pointing), hexavalent chromium (welding of stainless steel, paints), cadmium ( plated bolts, silver brazing) lead (paints, lead products), arsenic (as contaminant in lead) and mercury ((fugitive and paints)  Note paints are considered chemical containing materials, as are adhesives, cleaners, solders, solvents, fuels, acids and caustics.
· Personal exposures, i.e. inhalation and dermal hazards for workers and surrounding building occupants shall be addressed.

· Address potential for indoor air quality complaints from adjacent NASA employees and plans to minimize potential for complaints.

· Examine if less hazardous substitutes are available.
· Chemicals need to be managed through Chemical Management and the HAZCOM program http://smad-ext.grc.nasa.gov/emo/gov/cm.htm

In the HASP:

· Submit MSDS

· List engineering controls, including nuisance odor controls.

· Specific PPE (gloves-state manufacturer and glove material; glove selection- based on performance data from the manufacturer)

· Exposure assessment where applicable

· If respirators are required submit in accordance with the “Respiratory Protection” section.
· Quantity of chemical to be used and stored on-site.

· Disposal plan including waste chemicals, containers, contaminated equipment, cleaning materials, spent PPE and open containers of product chemicals.
6.
Confined Space Entry (Permit Required) 


(
Determine if workers will be entering a confined space as defined in Chapter 16 of the Glenn Safety Manual, “Confined Space Entry”.


In the HASP:
· Identify the location of the entry and the work to be performed. Employers involved in confined space entries shall have had formal OSHA confined space entry training within the last 2 years. 

· All chemicals shall be listed and MSDS sheets shall be supplied for all chemicals that will be used in the confined space.
· List specific engineering controls to be used (ventilation, etc.)

· List specific PPE that will be worn.  If respirators are required submit in accordance with the “Respiratory Protection” section.  

· A Confined Space Entry Permit shall be obtained and located on-site prior to entry.  All NASA procedures defined in Chapter 16, “Confined Space Entry”, of the Glenn Safety Manual shall be followed.

· List general emergency response procedures for evacuations and rescues.

7.
Crane/Aerial

( Applies to any lifting device used to raise personnel, materials or equipment.  

(  Lifting devices include but are not limited to, mobile cranes, hoists, slings, overhead cranes, man lifts, elevated work platform, and self-propelled elevating devices.


In the HASP: 

· Describe the task. 

· List the type of lifting devices that will be used at the construction site.

· List the certified operator(s) for each device located at the site.

· Describe the barricading plan to prevent access or travel under the elevated work load. 
· Use of a mobile crane or overhead crane to raise personnel is considered a Critical Lift.

· Consult Chapter 20, “Cranes and Lifting Devices,” of the Glenn Safety Manual for critical lift criteria.
9.
Demolition

(
The removal of existing materials, equipment, systems, structures, etc. presents potentially hazardous working conditions.
(
Demolition introduces the possibility of abatement issues beyond the hazards and controls normally associated with a construction project.  Some hidden hazards to be aware of may include asbestos, mercury, lead materials unusual odors, animal waste or nesting hazards.

In the HASP:

· Identify what specifically will be removed at the site and the method that  will be used for removal

· Identify any hazardous materials such as lead paint, asbestos, dust, etc. present
· List procedures to eliminate or contain identified hazards and address personnel exposure issues, and removal of construction debris from GRC.
· If respiratory protection is required submit in accordance with the “Respiratory Protection” section.
· Disposal Plan including any hazardous materials as well as construction debris, recyclable materials and spent PPE.
10.
Discharging down Sewers

(
GRC has two water permits requiring the control of discharges to all storm and sanitary sewer lines.


· Never flush anything to the above mentioned lines without obtaining written permission from Safety, Health and Environmental Division. 

To request to discharge effluents provide the following information:

· MSDSs for any chemicals that are proposed to be discharged into the sewer system.

· Describe the source and location of the discharge
· Describe the type(s) and location(s) of sewer lines to be impacted.

· Describe the method that will be used to discharge the effluent.

· Provide the quantity of effluent to be discharged.

11.
 Egress

(
All occupied facilities, and construction sites, must provide for the safe egress of individuals should evacuation be required.  


( Egress includes, but is not limited to, egress from buildings, roofs, 
        trenches, and any construction site.


In the HASP: 

· Describe the egress plan and how it will be implemented.

· Describe how each contractor employee will be trained for egress. 

· Describe the devices (signage, cones, etc.) that will be used to direct pedestrian traffic should emergency egress be necessary.

12.
Excavations (Permit Required)

(
At GRC any digging below the existing grade is considered an excavation.

(
A NASA-approved Excavation Permit is required to ensure that pre-existing underground utilities are identified before excavation activities commence.


In the HASP:
· List the estimated depth, width and length of excavation or trenches.  Those excavations between 4 and 20 feet in depth shall be evaluated for the existing and introduced hazards. 
· All excavations greater than 4 feet deep are considered confined spaces.  These excavations shall be evaluated in conjunction with the COTR and the Safety, Health and Environmental Division to determine if the excavation will be considered a Permit – Required confined space (see “Confined Spaced Entry” above).

· All excavations equal or greater than 20 feet in depth shall be considered Permit-Required Confined Spaces. A Confined Space Entry Permit shall be on-site prior to entry. 
· For excavations exceeding equal or greater than 20 feet in depth; trenching, shoring, or benching techniques shall be designed by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of Ohio.

· List any hazardous chemicals that may be present in the soil. 

· List engineering controls that will be utilized, including air monitoring equipment, methods and levels of response, if required.

· List disposal or relocation information for the excavated soil.
· Disposal Plan for soils and any additional wastes such as construction debris, recyclable materials and spent PPE.
· List specific personal protective equipment that will be worn.
· If respiratory protection is required, submit in accordance with the “Respiratory Protection” section.
· For trenches, list any chemical use or processes (ex.welding) that will be conducted within the trench.  Include engineering controls, administrative controls, or PPE to protect employees.

(
For trenches, list competent person, and method of shoring if greater than 4 feet deep (trench boxes, step-back, etc) that will be utilized.
· Include a copy of the Excavation Permit

· Describe storm water run off control and trench water management plan.
(
See Chapter 35, ”Digging, Trenching, and Excavation Procedure”, of the Glenn Safety Manual,.

13.
Falls (Heights>6’)

· OSHA has set a threshold of six feet above which fall protection criteria applies.[The six foot rule does not apply to fall protection for scaffolding.  See “Scaffolding”.]  Employees must be protected from fall hazards and falling objects whenever an affected employee is six feet or more above the next lower level, when within six feet of a wall lower than 42 inches plus or minus 3 inches, and when workers can fall into or onto dangerous equipment.  

· Fall protection for employee(s) shall be provided and installed before the employee(s) begins the work that necessitates that fall protection is required.  Assess the workplace to determine if the walking/working surfaces on which the employee(s) is to work has the strength and structural integrity to safely support workers. 


The implementation of a fall protection program requires these components:
· Evaluation of where fall protection is needed. Specifically describe the physical location where and type of fall protection devices that will be 
used (the use of a drawing/sketch is acceptable). 

· Select the fall protection systems which are appropriate for the specific site

· The Competent Person is responsible for ensuring the proper construction and installation of fall protection systems
· Proper supervision of employees.

· Implementation of safe work procedures.

· Proper training is required in the selection, use and maintenance of fall protection systems. 
In the HASP
Provide the type of fall protection to be used such as but not limited to: guardrail systems, safety net systems, personal fall arrest systems, warning line systems, safety monitoring systems, controlled access zone, covers, positioning device system, fences, barricades, equipment guards, and GRC’s Buddy System. 

· Employee(s) must be trained in proper use of the chosen fall protection system.  List the trained employee(s) utilizing fall protection devices.

· If a personal fall arrest system is to be used:

· Identify the type of system

· Acknowledge that the Safety, Health and Environmental Division needs to conduct an inspection to observe tie-off points 

· Describe how personnel below will be protected

· See Chapter 34, “Fall Protection”, and Chapter 22, “The Glenn Buddy System”, of the Glenn Safety Manual

14.
General Maintenance Checkout

(
Employees need to be aware of potential hazards that may exist in the installation of new equipment. 


In the HASP: 

· Identify the knowledgeable person(s) performing the checkout of systems. Identify the specific checkout method and precautions that shall be in place.

15.
Hand Tools/Power Tools

(
Hand tools are used at most construction sites. The most common hazards are their improper use. Power tools present greater accident hazards than hand tools.  Most hazards occur due to poor tool maintenance and improper handling.
· Whenever possible, use tools designed to be ergonomically correct.

In the HASP:

· Hand tools- Assure employees will be using the proper tool for each work activity. 

· Power tools - Assure employees will handle power tools as required by the manufacturer. 

· Describe the type of energy source for power tools( pneumatic, electrical, hydraulic)

· List the PPE that employees will wear when using hand or power tools

· Pneumatic tools- These tools generate high noise levels list the level of hearing protection that will be required.  Describe how building occupants will be protected from high sound levels.

· Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI) shall be used for electrical power tools regardless of the energy source.

16.
Hazardous Energy (Lockout/Tag Out)

(
Employees are exposed to a variety of energy sources when performing 
construction activities. 

(
The identification and control of energy sources is critical to ensure a safe working environment for workers.   


In the HASP:
· Identify the hazardous energy source for the project, mechanical, electrical, pneumatic, hydraulic, etc.

· Identify the authorized employee(s) who locks out or tags out equipment or energy sources.

· Identify affected employees, workers who are exposed to, or impacted by, lockout and tag out procedures.

· See Chapter 9, “Lockout/Tagout”, of the Glenn Safety Manual, 

17.
Hot Work (Permit Required)

(   “Hot Work” applies to any operation(s) using or producing sparks, flames, or heat that may be capable of igniting combustible materials.

· Hot work on stainless steel can produce elevated levels of Hexavalent Chromium, which is a carcinogen.  Hot work on carbon steel can produce among other metal fumes elevated levels of Manganese.  (see “Respiratory Protection” below)

· All welders must be trained in respiratory protection, be certified by a Physician and pass a fit test.  Documentation shall be made available upon request.
· See Chapter 28, “Hot Work Authorization”, of the Glenn Safety Manual, 


In the HASP:
· Identify the activity(s) that will require a hot work permit.  Identify the type of material and method that will be used for the activity  

· Identify the following:

· Type of fire protection to be used. 

· Type of materials with fill metal or welding rod MSDS(s)
· Method of welding

· Specific PPE and controls
· Methods of ventilation for fume control
· Exposure assessment

· Written respiratory protection program (see “Respiratory Protection”)

· Date of fire extinguisher training for fire watch personnel

18. Indoor Air Quality

· When feasible, mold contaminated material will be abated in accordance with EPA recommendations.  Workers remediating, cleaning and disposing of mold-contaminated material will be required to wear a respirator and skin protection.  (see “Respiratory Protection” and “Personal Protective Equipment” below)

· Work methods will be conducted in a manner that minimizes the generation of dust.

· Vehicles and fuel-powered equipment cannot operate near air intakes for buildings unless special measures have been taken and approved by the IHT.

· Chemicals cannot be used near air intakes of buildings unless special measures have been taken and approved by NASA.

· Doors are not permitted to be propped open for extended periods of time due to high potential for pests intrusion.

· Smoking is not permitted near air intakes.
· Special attention to housekeeping is required in dust producing operations to minimize workplace particulate levels.
· See Chapter 12, “Indoor Air Quality”, of the Occupational Health Programs Manual.

19.
Interruption of Safety System Operation (Area Clearance required) 

· The stoppage of any Safety System, such as, but not limited to, smoke detection, sprinkler system, gas detection, and sensor systems, requires the approval of an Area Clearance before such systems can be shutdown and/or locked out/tagged out to perform  construction or maintenance work, or the installation of equipment.

In the HASP:

· Identify the system(s) to be interrupted, obtain an approved Area Clearance from NASA prior to system shutdown/stoppage and commencement of work.

20.
Ladders

· Conduct an assessment to determine if workers will be working in elevated situations. If workers will be handling materials, the use of scaffolding, aerial lifts, or man lifts may be safer.   Note: Use of ladders requires three points of contact at all times unless mounting or dismounting or an appropriate personal fall protection system is used in conjunction with the ladder.
· The work to be performed shall be evaluated by the contractor on a case by case basis to determine if the use of a portable ladder is the most feasible method of providing access to work areas.
· Efforts shall be made to reduce or eliminate the amount of time a worker works from a portable ladder.

In the HASP:
· Identify the work activity and the type of ladder(s) to be used.  Each employee shall be trained to recognize the hazards present when using ladders.

· Identify the height of the ladders to be used.  

21.
Laser – Construction Activities (surveying, sighting, leveling, etc.)

· Compliance with the OSHA construction standard for “Non-ionizing radiation,” 29 CFR 1926.54, is mandatory.  

· Laser usage has become an industry-wide tool to facilitate construction activities and provide a higher level of measurement accuracy.

In the HASP:

· OSHA-required proof of qualification for construction laser operator(s).

· Laser use procedure which addresses, at a minimum, the following issues: 

a. Use restriction to “qualified” persons,
b. Efforts undertaken to minimize direct eye exposure (verify beam path prior to use, consideration of beam , termination, not positioning at eye level, prohibiting intentional direct viewing, posting of signage and use of cautions tape/cones to create an exclusion zone, etc.)

c. Prohibited times of use (i.e., dusk or night)

d. For indoor laser use, specify if and how an area is to be temporarily secured during laser use
(
See Chapter 13, “Laser Safety Program”, of the Occupational Health Programs Manual.

22.
Lead

· All painted surfaces must be checked well in advance of disturbance.  

· No hot work shall be performed on lead containing paint regardless of lead concentration.
· Abatement shall be performed by trained personnel
· Demolition activities that include lead containing materials will conform to lead in construction standard (29 CFR 1926.62).

· Work surfaces shall be decontaminated to acceptable clearance criteria, typically 40 µg/ft2.
· Lead based paint containing waste shall be disposed of properly.

· Compliance with OSHA 29CFR1926, “Lead in Construction”.


In the HASP:

· Describe the methods of removal

· Describe the engineering controls to be used.

· Provide a written respiratory plan (See “Respiratory Protection”)

· Describe Medical surveillance program  

· Describe worker training 

· Describe hygiene/decontamination
· Describe air monitoring plan.

· Written compliance program where required. 

· Describe disposal plan.
· Selection of specific Personal Protective Equipment
(
See Chapter 5, “Lead”, of the Occupational Health Programs Manual.
23.
Mercury

· A hazardous silver liquid metal commonly found in thermometers, mercoid switches and manometers.
· Potential GRC Locations: laboratories, drain traps, sump pumps, and low spaces in test cells.  Some suspect buildings would include Building 16, 301, 7, 5, 23, around tunnels and their control rooms.


In the HASP:
· Describe the methods of removal.

· Describe containment techniques (ventilation, signage, barricading, etc.)

· Training 

· Respirator protection program (see “Respiratory Protection”) 

· Qualify the exposure assessment process used.

· Selection of specific PPE

· Disposal (qualify)
· See Chapter 6, “Elemental Mercury”, of the Occupational Health Programs Manual.
24.
Noise

· NASA requirements for employee exposure to noise exceeds OSHA requirements.  The NASA Hearing Conservation Program has a maximum occupational exposure level, or criterion sound Level, of 85 decibels on an A-weighted scale (dBA), as a time weighted average (TWA), and an Action Level of 82 dBA TWA. 
·  Evaluation of employee exposure to noise is required when noise levels are at or above the action level.  All personnel who are in areas or performing tasks where exposure to noise is greater than 85dBA, regardless of duration, shall be provided with and required to wear hearing protection.  For noise exposures exceeding 100 dBA TWA, double hearing protection is required (plugs and muffs).
· See Chapter 3, “Hearing Conservation Program”, of the Occupational Health Programs Manual.
· OSHA 29CFR1926.52


In the HASP:
· Describe engineering, administrative and PPE controls that will be used to control employee exposure to noise.

· Describe controls used to prevent noise exposure to adjacent NASA building occupants. 

· Selection of specific PPE

25.
Painting

· Painting activities can expose personnel to organic vapors and/or particulate / flammable safety issues during application and drying. 

· Odors that are created by painting activities can generate complaints from building occupants.
· Left over product materials being left on-site, such as touch-up paint, shall be managed through Chemical Management and the HazCom Program.  http://smad-ext.grc.nasa.gov/emo/gov/cm.htm

In the HASP:
· Provide MSDSs

· Describe the method of application 
· Selection of specific PPE

· Describe controls to eliminate exposure of adjacent NASA employees to excessive odors.
· Disposal Plan including waste chemicals (paints, solvents, etc), containers, contaminated equipment, cleaning materials, spent PPE and open product containers.
· Written respiratory protection program, if respirators are required (See “Respiratory Protection”)

26.
Personal Protective Equipment

· OSHA Construction Standard 1926

· General statement PPE will be worn is not sufficient

· PPE used when hazards can not be completely eliminated by engineering controls.  

In the HASP:

· Identify the hazard(s) present or anticipated. List the specific engineering and administrative controls that will be implemented or the Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to be worn. 
(
Examples of PPE include:



a.
Face and Eye protection – safety glasses, goggles, shields, welding 
         or laser protection



b.
Head protection – hard hats to protect against impact and electrical 
         shock and burns



c.
Hearing Protection – Earplugs or earmuffs



d.
Protective footwear- safety shoes, rubber boots, slip resistant 
         soles



e.
Special clothing – specific chemical protective clothing, hot/cold 



environment clothes, high visibility clothing (traffic vests)
· Disposal plan for spent PPE
(
See Chapter 15, “Personal Protective Equipment”, of the Glenn Safety Manual, 

27. Radiation (Ionizing)

· Source (Gamma) Radiography

a. Comply with Nuclear Regulatory Commission’s 10CFR34 “Licenses for 
Industrial Radiography and Radiation Safety Requirements for Industrial 
Radiographic Operations”

b. Coordination of planned activity with site personnel (i.e., 
    construction manager, building manager, security personnel, radiation   

    safety officer)

· X-ray Radiography

a. Satisfy guidelines specified in Ohio Department of Health’s 3701:1-66-12 of the Ohio Administrative Code.

b. Coordination of planned activity with site personnel (i.e., construction manager, building manager, security personnel, radiation safety officer)

· Density Gauge Operations

a. Comply with applicable portions of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission’s 10 
CFR parts 19, 20, and 30.  If the source is “Naturally Occurring” or 
“Accelerator Produced,” then, satisfy similar guidelines specified in the Ohio Administrative Code. 

b. If necessary, coordination of planned activity with site personnel (i.e., construction manager, building manager, security personnel, radiation safety 
officer)


In the HASP:
· Source (Gamma) Radiography

a. Copy of byproduct materials license (or otherwise provide to RSO)

1.
NRC license, OR

2.
NRC Reciprocity Agreement for holder of a state license

b. Source isotope and activity

c. Description of the radiography shots:  type, location, number, orientation, time/length, use of shielding or collimator, etc.

d. Boundary and evacuation plan for performing radiography

e. Emergency contact numbers for the contractor’s RSO and the Glenn RSO (dispatch) 

· X-ray (Radiation-Generating Equipment) Radiography

a. Copy of the device registration with pertinent state agency (e.g. the Ohio Department of Health if contactor is an Ohio-based company)

b. Description of x-ray tube and controller, including make, model and operating potential to be used for specified activity

c. Description of the radiography shots:  type, location, number, orientation, time/length, use of shielding or collimator, etc.

d. Boundary and evacuation plan for performing radiography

e. Emergency contact numbers for the contractor’s RSO and the Glenn RSO (dispatch) 
· Density Gauge Operations

a. Copy of byproduct materials license

1..
NRC license, OR

2. 
NRC Reciprocity Agreement for holder of a state license
b. If needed, consideration of how the gauge activities might impact GRC employees or other construction contractors working in the nearby vicinity.

c. A description of any necessary controls to be implemented during gauging operations.

d. Description of security measures used to control access to gauge(s).

e. Emergency contact numbers for the contractor’s RSO and the Glenn RSO (dispatch) 


Available On Site:
· Source (Gamma) Radiography

a. Proof of certification of radiographer

b. Date of last refresher training for radiographer and assistant

c. All procedures and documentation required by NRC to be on site at temporary radiography site.

· X-ray (Radiation-Generating Equipment) Radiography

a. Proof of certification of radiographer

b. Date of last refresher training for radiographer and assistant

c. All procedures and documentation required by the pertinent state agency (such as ODH) to be on site at temporary radiography site.

28.
Respiratory Protection

· A written respiratory protection program must be submitted if respiratory protection is required.  Documentation includes the following:

 

a.
Training



b.
Medical Surveillance



c.
Fit Testing

· References:  OSHA 29CFR1910.134 and NASA Respiratory Protection Program, Chapter 4 of the Occupational Heath Programs Manual.
· Employees must be clean shaven around respirator seal.


In the HASP:
· Written Respiratory Program
· Hazard assessment / Exposure Assessment data including MSDS for material requiring respiratory protection.
· List the type(s) of respirator and cartridge to be worn

· When required, provide the procedure to comply with OSHA cartridge change schedule requirement.

· Reference:  http://www.osha.gov/SLTC/etools/respiratory/index.html
29.
Sanitation

(
Employees will have the need to use facilities for the purpose of personal hygiene and sanitary measure.


In the HASP:
· Identify what facilities employees will use. Portable facilities or NASA.   The use of NASA facilities shall be coordinated with the NASA Project Manager and the Building Manager.

30.
Scaffolding

· Scaffolding, in lieu of ladders, provides a safe alternative to working at elevated heights.  

In the HASP:

· Address the use of scaffolding, identify the type of scaffolding to be used,  and the maximum load that can be supported 

· Identify the competent person that will erect and dismantle the scaffolding.

· Identify the competent person that will perform and document inspections of scaffolding prior to each use.

31.
Traffic Control


(   Determine if traffic will be affected during the construction period. 
        To protect personnel, engineering controls shall be used in hazardous 
        areas.


In the HASP:

· List the type of controls to be used to control traffic.  For road/lane closures, Flagmen shall be used if required. 

· See Chapter 19, “Vehicle and Pedestrian Safety”, of the Glenn Safety Manual, 

32.
Utility Service interruption (Area Clearance required)

A stoppage, no matter what the time duration, of any utility service as defined by the Area Clearance Process documentation.


In the HASP:

· Identify the system(s) to be interrupted, obtain an approved Area Clearance from NASA prior to system shutdown/stoppage and commencement of work.

 [END OF AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE]

